IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

)

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) CIVIL ACTION NO. 05 1216

. ) N ¥
Plaintiff, )
) f
v. ) CONSENT DECREE

)
SCHOLASTIC INC., )
GROLIER INCORPORATED, and )
SCHOLASTIC AT HOME, INC,, )
| )
Defendants. )
)

WHEREAS, Plaintiff, the United States of Ainerica, has commenced this action by filing
the Complaint herein; Defendants have waived service of the Summons and Complaint; the
parties have been represented by the attorneys whose names appear hereafter; and the parties
have agreed to the settlement of this action upon the following terms and conditions, without
adjudicaﬁon of any issue of fact or law and without Defendants admitting liability for any of the
matters alleged in the Complaint; -

NOW, THEREFORE, upon stipulation of Plaintiff and Defendants, it is hercby
ORDERED, ADJ UDGED AND DECREED as follows:

1. This Court has jurisdiction of the suhject matter and of the parties, and venue in this

district 1s proper as to all parties.
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2. The Complaint states a claim upon which relief may be granted against the Defendants
under Sections 5(a), S(m)(1)(A) and (B), 13(b), 16(2) and 19 of the Federal Trade Commission
ACL("FTC Act"), 15 U.5.C. §§ 45(a), 45(m)(1)(A) and (B), 53(b), 56(a) and S7b.

3. Entry of this order is in the public interest.

4. The parties hereto stipulate and agree to this Consent Decree, without trial or final
adjudication of any issue of fact or law, to seitle and resolve all matters in dispute arising from
the allegations in the Complaint, Although the Defendants agree to enter iﬁto this Order,
Defendants deny all of the allegations set forth in the Complaint other than the jurisdictional facts
s.et forth in the Complaint.

DEF]NITIONS

5. “Announcement” has the meaning set forth in Section 425.1(c)(6) of the
Prenotification Nega‘ﬁve Option Rule, which is: “any material sent by a seller using a Negative
Option Plan in which the Selection is identified and offered to Subscribers.”

6. “Book Club” means the direct-to-home book clubs operated by Defendants that offer
books to consumers on a Continuity Program basis.

7. “Continﬁity Program™ means any plan, arrangement, or System pursuant to which a
consumer receives periodic shipments of products or the provision of services without prior
notification by the seller before each shipment or service period, regardless of any trial or
approval period allowing the consumer to return or be reimbursed for the product or service.

8. “Contract-complete Subscriber” means any Subscﬁber who has purchased the
minimum quantity of merchandise required by the terms of membership in a Book Club or

Prenotification Negative Option Plan.
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9. “Form” has the meaning set forth in Section 425. 1(c)(7) of the Prenotification
Negative Option Rule, which is: “any form which the Subscriber returns to the seller to instruct
the seller not to send the Selection.”

10. “Free-to-pay Conversion” means, in an offer or agreement to sell or provide any
goods or services, a provision under which a customer receives a product or service for free for
an initial period and will incur an obligation to pay for the product or service if he or she does not
. take affirmative é,ction to ;:aucel before the end of that period.

11. “Negative Option Feature” means, in an offer or agreement to seli or provide any
goods or services, a provision under which the customer’s silence or failure 10 take an affirmative
action to reject goods or services or to cancel the agreement is interpreted by the seller as
acceptance of the offer. The term includes such a provision in offers or agreements involving
Free-to-pay Conversions, automatic renewals, Continuity Programs, and Prenotification Ne gative
Option Plans covered by the Commission’s Rule entitled the “Use of Prenotification Negative
Option FPIans,” 16 C.F.R. Patt 425 (2003) (“Prenotification Negative Option Rule®).

12. ‘;Prenotiﬁcatioh Negative Option Plan” has the meaning set forth in Section
425.1(c)(1) of the FTC’s Trade Regulation Rule entitled “Use of Prenotification Negative Option
Plans” (“Prenotification Neéative Option Ruie"), 16 C.F.R. Part 425, which is: “a contractual
plan or arrangement under which a seller periodically sends to Subscribers an Announcement
which identifies merchandise (other than anmua] supplements to previously acquired
merchandise) it proposes to send to Subscribers to such. plan, and the Subscribers thereafter
teceive and are billed for the merchandise identified in each such Announcemeht, unless by a

date or within a time specified by the seller with respect to each such Announcement the
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Subscribers, in confortnity with the provisions of such plan, instruct the seller not to send the
identified merchandise.”

13. “Selécﬁon” has the meaning set forth in Section 425.1(c)(5) of the Prenotification
Negative Option Ru]e? which is: “the merchandise identified by a seller under any Negative
Option Plan as the merchandise which the Subscriber will receive and be billed for, unless by the
date, or within the period specified by the seller, the Subscriber instructs the seller not {0 send
such merchandise,”

14, *Subseriber” meaus any person who has agreed to receive the benefits of, and assume
the obligations entailed in, membership in any Book Club and whose membership in such Book
Club has been approved and accepted by the seller.

JUDGMENT FOR CIVIL PENALTY

15. Judgment ig hereby entered against Defendants Scholastic Inc., Grolier Incorporated,
and Scholastic at Home, Inc. (“Defendants™), jointly and severally, in the amount of $710,000 as
a civil penalty, pursuant to Section 5(m)(1)(A) and (B) of the FTC Act, 15U.S.C. § 45(m)( )(A)
ﬁhd (B). Defendants must pay the civil Ppenalty within five (5) calendar days of the date of entry
of this Order by electronic fund transfer §  accordance with instructions provided by the Office of
Consumer Litigation, Civil Division, U.S, Department of Justice, Washmgton D.C. 20530, for
appropriate disposition. In the event of any default in any payment, which defaylt continues for
ten days beyond the due date of payment, the entire unpaid payment, together with interest, as
computed pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961 from the date of defauit to the date of payment, will

immediately become due and payable dircetly to Plaintiff.
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INJUNCTION

Prohibited Business A ctivities in Connection with N egative Option Features

16. Defendants, their successors and assigns, and their officers, agents, servants,

employees and attoreys, and all persons in active concert or participation with any one or more

of them who receive actual notice of this Consent Decree by personal service or otherwise, are

hereby enjoined from:

A.

Making any representation, in any manner, expressly or by implication, in

connection with the offering to consumers of any offer with a Negative Option

Feature, unless, at the time of making such representation, all material terms and

conditions of the offer with a Negative Option Feature are clearly and

conspicuously disclosed, including:

i

ii.

i,

if true, that a Subscriber’s purchase of supplementary books and other
merchandise offered on a Prenotification Negative Option Plan basis does
Dot count toward the minimum purchase requirements of Defendants’
Book Clubs; and

if true, that cancellation of a Spbspriber’s enrollment in a Book Club does
not cancel future Prenotification Negative Option Plan shipments.

if true, that consumers who accept an offer with a Negative Option Feature
may receive subsequent offers or additional products or services thai
require consumers to contact the Defendants to avoid receiving additional
products or services and Incurring any financial obligation for such

additional products or services;
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iv. - if true, that the Defendants autornatically enroll consumers in a
Prenotification Negative Option Plén or a Continuity Program, if
comsumers make purchases or accept products or services or products or
services for & free trial period ;

V. if true, that consumers who accept an offer with a Negative Option Feature
are responsible for rehn'ning\ the products that the Defendants offer, at their
cost, or that the Defendants will pay for the cost to return such products;
and

vi. before a customer pays for products or services, at least onc reasonable
means consumers may effectively use to prevent the shipment of
addmonal products, the provision of additional services, or any financial
oblx gation for additional products or services.

Misrepresenting any material term or condltion' of any offer with a Negative

Option Feature,

Selliug or distributing or causing to be sold or distributed products or services by

means of a Negative Option Feature without first obtaining the consent of

consumers to participate in a program or plan with a Negative Option Feature
before any shipment of products or provision of services is made, Prior to
obtaining consumers’ consent, Defendants must discloge clearly and
conspicuously in all promotional materials and solicitations, including, but not

limited to, direct mai] solicitations or inbound and outbound telemarketing calls,
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all material terms and conditions of the offer with a Negative Option F eature,

including, but not limited to-

i,

1.

1,

iv,

Vii.

viii,

the fact that periodic shipments of products or the periodic provision or the
continuation of services wil] occur without further action by Consumers;
if true, the fact that Subscribers will be enrolled in a Prenotification
Negative Option Plan or other plan or program with a Negative Option
Feature;

a description of each good or the type of good to be included in each
shipment or a description of the services that will be performed or
continued;

the approximate interval between sach shipment or service period or the
number of shipments or service periods per year;

the cost or range of costs for cach shipment or service period, including
whether consumers must pay for shipping and handling;

a description of the billing procedure to be employed for each shipment or

period of service;

the minimum mimber of purchases or minimum service period required by
the Défmda.nts, if any; |

if the Defendants have a policy of not making refinds or accepting returns,
a statement that this is the Defendants’ policy or if Defendants make

representations about refunds, cancellations, exchanges or repurchasing
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policies a statement of 4] material terms and conditions of a guarantee,
refﬁnd Or return policy; and

ix. & description of the terms, conditions, and procedures under which
-consumers may cancel further shipments or discontinue u servige.

Business Activities Prohibited Pursuant to the Unordered Merchandise Statute and
Previous Commission Determinations

actual notice of this Consent Decree by personal service or otherwise, in connection with the
advertising, promotioh, offer fdr saie or sale of any product or service, are hereby enjoined from
violating, directly or through dlly corporation, subsidiary, division or other device, any provision
of the Unordered Merchandise Statute, 39 U.S.C. § 3009(a), or as it may hereafter be amended.
A copy of this Rule and 2 Synopsis of previous Commission determinations are attached hereto as
4“Attachﬁ1eut C” and incorporated herein as if fully set forth verbatim,

18. Defendants, their Successors and assigns, and thejr officers, agents, servants,

advertising, promotion, offer for sale or sale of any product or service, are hereby enjoined,
directly or through any corporation, subsidiary, division or other device, from:

A, Sending any merchandise without the prior expressed request or consent of the



mmay treat the merchandise ag 4 gift and may retain, use, discard or dispose of it in
any manner without any obligation whatsoever to thé sender,
B. Sending any communicﬁation, including bills, invoices, reminders, letters, notices
©or dﬁnning communications, that in any manner seeks to obtain payment for any
merchandise shipped without the prior expressed request or consent of the
recipient.

Business A ctivities Prohlbited Pursuant to
The Prenotification N egative Option Rule

hereby enjoined from ever violating, directly or through any corporation, subsidiary, division or
other device, any provision of the Prenotification Negative Option Rule or as the Ryle may
hereafter be amended, including, but not limited to, by failing to disclose deaﬂy and
consplcuously In any advertisement containing or acoompanying any device or materal that a -
prOSpectwe Subscriber utilizes to request acceptance or enrollment in 2 Prenotification Negative
Option Plan, all material terms of membership in Defendants’ Prenotification Negative Option
Plan, as required by Section 425, 1(a)(1) of the Prenotification Negative Option Rule, Such
material terms include, but are not limited to:

A. That aspect of the plan under which the Subscriber must notify the seller, in the

manner provided for by the seller, if the Subscriber does not wish to purchase the

Selection;
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B. Any obligation assumed by the Subscriber to purchase a mininoum guantity of
merchandise; |

C. T’hsvﬁght of a Contract-complete Subscriber to cancel his membership at any
time;

D. Whether billing charges will include an amount for postage and handling;

E. A disdosﬁre indiéating that the Subscriber will be provided with at least ten ( 10)
days in which to maijl any Form, contained in or accompanying an Announcement
identifying the Selection, to the seller;

F. A disclosure that the seller will credit the return of any Selections sent to a
Subscriber, and guarantee to the Postal Service or the Subscriber postage 1o return
such Selections to the seller when the Announcement and Form are not reccived
by the Subscriber in time to afford him at least ten (10) days in which to mail his
Form to the seller; and |

\ :

G. The frequency with which the Announcements and Forms will be sent to the
Subscriber and the maximum number of Anmouncements and Forms which will
be sent to him during a 12-month period.

A copy of this Rule is attached hereto as “Aftachment A” and incorporated herein as if fully set

forth verbatim.

Business Activities Prohibited Pursuant te
The Telemarketing Sales Rule

20. Defendants, their successors and assigns, and their officers, agents, servants,

employées and attomeys, and all persons in active concert or participation with any one or more
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of them who receive actual notice of thig Consent Decrecvby personal service or otherwise, are
hereby enjoined from ever violating, directly or through any corporation, subsidiary, division or
other device, any provision of the Federa] Trade Commission's Rule entitled “Telemarketing
Sales Rule,” 16 C.E.R Paﬁ 310, or as it may hereafter be amended, including, but not limited to,
failing to disclose truthfully, in a clear and conspicuous manner, before a customer pays for
goods or senﬁces oftered, all material terms and conditions of an offer for goods or services that
includes a Negative Option Feature, including, but not limited to, (1) how consumers must act to
avoid periodic supplemental plan shipments and the obligation to pay for or return them, and, (ii)
if true, that the cancellation of a consumer’.s enrollment in a base baok club does not cancel
future supplemental plan shipments, as required by Section 3 10.3¢)(1)(vii). A copy of this Rule
is attached hereto as “Attachment B” and incorporated herein as if fully set forth verbatim,
Consumer Notification and Cessation of Collection Efforts.

21. Defendants, their successors and assigns, must cease all collection efforts for all
Continuity Program shipments that were shipped from January 1, 2001 throngh December 31,
2003, to Subscribers who had already purchased four shipments from Defendahts’ Book Clubs
and Prenotification Negative Option Plans, but weré refused cancellation of their enrollment by
Defendants.

22. Defendants, their snocessors and assigns, must cease all collection efforts for all
supplemental Prenotification Negative Option Plan shipments that were shipped, from January |,
2001 through December 31, 2003, to Contract-complete Subscribers who had already requested
cancellation of their Book Club accounts. |

23. Defendants, their successors and assigns, must send a notice to all current members
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of any of Defendanfs’ Book Clubs or Prenotification Negative Option Plans disclosing, in a clear
and conspicuons manner, all material terms and conditions of the program or plan, mcluding the
consumer’s right to canccl at any time and instructions on how to cancel. For members of
Defendants® Prenotification Negative Option Plans, this notice must be included with the first
Amnnouncement Defendants send to plan members following the date of entry of this Consent
Decree. For members of Defendants’ Book Clubs, this notice must be sent within sixty (60) days
from the date of service of this order, and may be included with the earliest practical product
shipment.
Record Keeping

24. For a period of three (3) years from the date of entry of this Consent Decree,
Defendants and their agents, employees, officers, corporations, successors, and assigns, and those
persons in active concert or participation with them who recejve actual nistice of this Order by
personal service or otherwise, and are engaged in the marketing or sale of Defendants’ books or
products through the use of Book Clubs, Prenotification Negative Option Plans, or other
Continuity Programs, are hereby restrained and enjoined from failing to create and retain the
following records:

A, Accounting records thﬁt reﬂe&c the cost of goods or services sold, revenues

generated, and the disbursement of such Tevenues;
B. Personnel records accurately reﬂegting: the name, address, and telephone number
of each person employed in any capacity by such business, inchuding as an

independent contractor; that person's Job title or position; the date upon which the
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person commenced work; and the date and reason for the person's termination, if
applicable; |

Customer files containing the names, addresses, phone numbers, dollar amounts
paid, quantity of items or services purchased, and description of items or services
purchased, to the extent such information js obtained in the ordinary course of
business;

Written complaint letters and complaints sent via electronic mail (whether
received directly, indirectly or throngh any third party) regarding the.texms of or
entrollment in any Book Club, Prenotification Negative Option Plan, or Continuity
Program, and any responscé to those complaints; and all records of complaints
received over the telephone to the extent such information is obtained in the
ordinary course of business; provided thgt if a response is in the form of a
standard form letter, Defendants must retain a singie copy of the form letter and
must create and. maintain information sufficient to identify the customer, fhc plan
or program about which the complaint js made, which standard form letter was
sent (including which versjon if the standard form letter has been revised), the
date the response wag sent, and the manner in which it was sent (e.g., email, First |
Class Mail, or private or comamercial courier);

Refund requests (whether received diréctly, indirectly or through any third party)
regarding the‘terms of or enrollment In any Prenotification Negative Option Plan,
or Continuity Program, and any responses to those requests; provided that if a

response is in the form of a standard form letter, Defendants must retain a single
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copy of the form letter and must create und maintain information sufficient to
identify the customer, the Pplan or program pursnant to which the request is made,
which standard form letter was sent (including which version if the standard form
letter has been revised), the date the tesponse was sent, and the manner in which it
was sent (e.g., email, First Class Mail, or private or commercial coﬁrief); and
Copies of all sales Scripts; training materials, advertisements, or other marketing
materials,

Distribution of Order; Notice to FTC; Continuing Jurisdiction

25. Defendants, their successors and assigns, within thirty (30) days of the entry of this

Consent Decree, must provide:

1.

11.

A copy of this Consent Decree, the Prenotification Negative Option Rule, the
Telemarketing Sales Rule, the Unordered Merchandise Statute, and the Synapsis
of previous Commission determinations to each of their officers and to each of
their managers responsible for conduct related to the sﬁbjcct matter of this
ansent Decree; and

A Surmmary, to be agreed upon by counsel for Defendanis and the Commission,
setting forth how to comply with the Consent Decree, the Prenotification Negative

Option Rule, the Telemarketing Sales Rule, the Unordeted Merchandise Statute,

‘and the Synopsis of previous Commission determinations, oy all employees,

agents, and representatives who are responsible for conduct related to the subject
matter of this Consent Decree (including, but not limited to, telemarketery,

customer service representatives, persons responsible for drafting promotional
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materials, and persons not identified as managers who supervise any of those

listed above in this subparagraph).
Defendants, their successors and assigns, further must secure from each person a signed, or
similarly authenticated, acknowledgment of receipt of a copy of the materials required to be
provided under this Paragraph, and must within ten (10) days of complying with this Paragraph,
provide an affidavit to the Associate Director, Division of Enforcement, Bureau of Consurger
Protection, 600 Pennsylvania Ave., N'W., Washington, D.C. 20580, setting forth the fact and
manner of their compliance, including the name and title of each person to whom a copy of the
Consent Decrce and other materials have been provided.

26. Defendants, their successors and assigns, shall notify the Associate Director,
Division of Enforcement, Bureau of Consumer Protection, Federal Trade Commission, 600}
Pennsylvania Ave, N.-W., Washington, D.C. 20580, at least thirty (30) days prior to any change
in Defendants® Business including, but not limited to, merger, incorporation, dissolution, |
assignment, sale which results in the emergence of a successor corporation, the creation or
dissolution of a subsidiary or parent, or any ofhcr change which may affect Defendants’
obligations under this Consent Decree. Provided, however, that with rcs;}cbt to any proposed
change in the corporation about which the Defendants Jearn less than 30 days prior to the date
such action is to take place, the Defendants shall notify the Commission’s Associate Di.rectér for
Enforcement as soon as practicable after obtaining such knowledgé.

27. Defendants are hereby required, in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 7701, to furnish to

the Federal Trade Commission their taxpayer identifying numbers (employer identification
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numbers), which shall be used for putposes of collecting and reporting on any delinquent amount
arising out of Defendants’ relaﬁohship with ﬁe government,

28. This Court shall retain jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enablipg any of
the parties to this Consent Decree to apply to the Court at any time for such flJIthér orders or
directives as may be Tecessary or appropriate for the interpretation or modification of this
Consent Decree, for the enforcement of compliance j:hercwith, or for the punishment of

violations thereof,

The parlies, by their Tespective counsel, hereby consent to the terms and conditions of the
Consent Decree s set forth above and consent to the entry thereof, Defendants waive any rights

that may arise under the Equal Access to Justice Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2412,

DATED: FOR THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA:

PETER D. KEISLER
Assistant Attorney General
Civil Division

U.S. Department of Justice

KENNETH L. WAINSTEIN
United States Attomey‘ :
District of Columbia

L=

(Ey LAU%gELWEINSTEIN, D.C. BAR 389511
sistant"United States Attorney

555 4 St., NW

Washingron, D.C. 20001

(202)




/

/!

/"

EUGENE M. THIROLF
Director

Office of Consumer Litigation

~éém;.wac¥' B0
ELIZABETH STEIN

Attorney

Office of Consumer Litigation
Civil Division

U.S. Departinent of Justice

930 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW

Washington, DC 20530-0001

" FOR THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION:

Cltens 2, [Cntoan_
ELAINE D. KOLISH

Associate Director for Enforcement
Bureau of Consumer Protection

"Federal Trade Commission

fAMES REILLY DOLAK
EDWIN RODRIGUEZ

Assistant Director for Enforcement
Bureau of Consumer Protection
Federal Trade Commission

600 Pennsylvania Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20580

(202) 326-3292
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FOR THE DEFENDANTS

SCHOLASTICINC.
GROLIER INCORPORATED
SCHOLASTIC AT HOME, INC.

BYMMA&&

Aobect 5. B

ROBERT B, BELL

DAVID MEDINE

Wilmer Cutler Pickering Hale and Dorr LLP
2445 M St., NW '
Washington, DC 20037

(202) 663-6533

JUDGMENT IS THEREFORE EN TERED in favor of Plaintiff and against Defendants, pursuant
to all the terms and conditions recited above. ' '

Dated: , 2005.

United States District J udge
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P1. 425

PART 425-—USE OF PRENOTIFI-
EL/}\TI‘!EN NEGATIVE  OPRTION

$426.1 The rula.

(a) In connection with the sale, offer-
ing for sale. or distribution of goods
and merchandise in or affecting cam-

" which the

16 CFR Ch. | (1=1-05 Edition)

Merce, as “commerce’” is defined In the

* Federal Trade Commission Act, it 15 an

unfair or deceptive act or practice, for
a seller in connection with the use of
any negative option plen to fall o
comply with che following require-
ments:

(1) Promoticnal material shall claar-
ly and eanspicucusly disclose tha mate-
rial tarms of the plan, Including:

() That aspsct of the plan under
subscriber must nulify the
seller, In the manner provided for by
the seller, if ha daes not wish to pur-
chase rthe salecrion:

() Any obligatlon assumed by the
subscriber to purchase a minimum
quantity of merchandisa:

(i13) The right of 5 contract-complete
subseriber ta cancel his membersghip at
any time;

(tv) Whether billing charges will in.
clude an amounr for postage amd han-
dling:

(v) A disclosure indicating that the
subscriber will be provided with ar
least ten (10) days in which to mail any
form, contained in or accompanying an
announcement identifying the selec-
tion, to the seller;

() A diselosure thar the seller wil)
credit the return of any selecrions sent
to a subseriber, and guarantee to the
Postal Sarvice or the subscriber post-
RAge o retum sueh selections to the
seller when the announcement and
form are not recetved by the subscriber
in time to afford him at least ten (10)
days in which to mail his form to the
seller;

(vil) The frequency with which che
announcements and forms will ba sent
to the subscriber and the maximurn
number of announcements and forrnsg
which will be sent to him during a 12-
month period,

(2) Prior to sending any selection, the
seller shall mail to its subscribers,
within the time specifiad by paragraph
(a)(3) of this section:

() An announcemant
salection:

(i) A form, contained in or accom-
pentying the armouncement, clearly and
conspicuously disclosing that the sup.
scribar will recaiva the selection iden-
tified in the announcement unless he
Instructs the seller that he does not

identifying the

422
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Federal Trade Commission

want the salection, designating a pro-
cedure by which the form may be usad
for the purpose of enabling the sub.
scriber 50 to instruct che seller, and
specifying either the pretum date or the
mailing date,

3 The saller shall maj) the an-
founcemsnt and form either ag least
twenty (20) days prior ta the recurt
date or at {east fifteen (15) days prior
to the mailing data, or provide a matl-
Ing date at least ten (10) days after re-
ceipt by the subscriber, provided. how.
ever, that whichaver system the seller
chooses for malling the announcement
and form, such systern must provide
the subscriber with at least ten (10)
days in which to mall his form,

(b In connection wich the sale or dis.
tribution of goods and merchandise in
or affecting commerce, ag “commerce"”
is defined in the Federal Trade Com-
mission Aer, it shall constitute an un-
falr or deceptive act or practice for a
seller in connection with the use of any
negative option plan ta: :

(1) Refuse to credit, for the full
invoiced arnount thereof, the return of
any selection gent to g subseriber, and
to guarantee (v the Postal Service or
the subscriber postage adaquate to re-
turn such selection to the seller, when:

() The selection s sent to a sub-
scriber whose farm indicating that he
does not want to receiva the selection
was received by the seller by the raturn
date or was mailad by the subscriber by
the malling dace:

(i) Such form is recaived by the sell-
er after the return datve, but has been
mailed by the subseriber and post-
marked at. least 3 days prior to the re-
turn date;

{tii) Prior to the date of shipment of
such selection, the seller has recelved
frotn a contract-complete subscriber, a
written notice of cangellation of mem-
bership adequately identifying the sub-.
scriber: howaver, thig provision is ap-
plicable only to the firse selection senc
o a canceling contract-complete sub-
seriber after the seller has received
wrilten notice of cancellarion, Afrer
the first seleerion shipment, all salec.
tlon shipments thereafrer are deemed

to be unerdered merchandise pursuant '

to section 3009 ol the Posta] Reorga-
nization Act of 1870, as adopted by the

§425.1

Federal Trade Commission in its public
fotice, dated September 1, 1970;

(iv) The announcement and form are
not received by the subseriber in time
to afford him at leasr tep (10) days in
which to mail his form.

(3) Fail to no:ﬂg a subscriber known
by the seller to he within any of the
circumstances set forth in paragraphs
MDA cthrough (iv) of this secrion,
that if the subscriber clects. the sub-
seriber may return the selecrion with
feturn postaga guaranteed and recelve
& credit £o his acecount, ‘

(3} Refuse to ship within 4 weaks
after receipt of an order merchandice
due subscribers ag introductory and
bonus merchandise, unless the seller i3
unable to deliver the merchandise
originally offered due to unanticipated
circumstances beyond ‘the seller's con-
trol and pramptly makes g reasonably
equivalent alternavive offer, However,
where the subscriber refuses to accept
alternatively offered introducrory mer-
chandise, bur insread insists upon ter-
mination of his membership due to the
scller's failure to provide the sub-
scriber with his originally requested
introductory merehandise, o any por-
tion thereof, the seller must comply
with the subgcriber's request for can-
cellation of membership. provided the
subseriber returns to the saller any in-
Lroductory merchandise which already
may have been sent him,

(5 Fail to terminate promptly the
membership of 5 properly identified
contract-complete subscriber upon his
written request,

(8) Ship, without the express consant
of the subscriber, substituted merchans
dise for that ardered by the subscriber,

(c) Por the purposes of this part;

(1) Negative option plan refers w a
contractual plan or arrangement under
Which a seller periodically sends to
subscribers an announcement which
Idencifies mershandise (other than ap-
nual supplements to previously ac-
quired merchandisa) it Proposes to send
to subscribers to such plan, and the
subscribers thereafrer recajva and are
billed for the merchandise identified in
each such anrouncement, unless by z
date or within a time specified by the
seller with respect to each such an-
nouncernent the subscribers, in con.
formity with the provisions of such
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plan, instruct the seller not to send the
identifled merchandise,

(2) Subscriber means any person who
has agreed to receive the bensfits af,
and assume the obligations entailsd in,
membership in any negative option
plan and whosa membarship in such
negative aption plan has been approved
and accepted by the saller. -

(3) Contract-complate subscriber rafers
to a subscriber who has purchased the
minimum quantity of merchandise re.
quired by the terms of membership in g
negative option plan,

(1) Promotional material refers to an
advertisement contalning or accomn-

panying any device or material which a.

prospective subseriber sends to the
seller to request acceptance or enroll-
ment in a negative option plan,

(3} Selectfon refers to the merchandise
identified by a seller under any nega-
tive option plan as the merchandlge
which the subscriber will receive and
be billed for, unless by the date. or
within the period specified by the sell-
er. the subseriber instructs the seller
not to send such merchandise.

(®) Announcement refers to any mate-
riel sent by a seller using a nepative
option plan it which the selection {s
identified and offered to subscribers,

(1) Form refers to any form which the
subscriber retumns to the saller to in.
struct the seller not to send the selec.
Lion. '

(&) Rerurn date refers o a dare speci-
ied by a seller using a negative option
Plan as the date by which a form mugt
be recelved by the saller to pravent

. shiprrent of the selection. :
®) Malilng date refers to the time
specified by a seller using a negative
option plan as the time by or within
which a form must be mailad by a sub-
scriber tu prevent shipment of the se-
lection.

(28 Stat. 717, a5 amended: 15 .S,C., 4158)

[38 FR 1896; Few. 22, 1973 38 FR 6991, Mar. 15,
1973, as amended gt 83 FR 44562, Aug. 20, 1998)

PART 429—RULE CONCERNING
COOLING-OFF  PERIOD FOR
SALES MADE AT HOMES OR AT
CERTAIN OTHER LOCATIONS

Sec. |
429,0 Deflnivions.

16 CFR Ch. I (1-1-05 Edition)

429.1 The Rule,

429.2 Effact an State laws and munjeipal ar-
dinances.
423.3 Exemptions.

AUTHORITY; Secctions
U.5.C, 41-58.

$429.0 Definitions,

For the purposes of this pare the fol-
lowing definitions shall apply:

(a) Daoi~to-Door SaleA sale, leage,
or rental of consumer goods or services
with a purchase price of $28 or more,
Wwhether under single or multiple con-
tracts, in which the seller or his rep-
resentative personally sollcits the sale.
including those in response to ar fol-
lowing an inviration by the buyer, and
the buyer's agreement or offer to pur-
chase is made at a place other than tha
place of busingss of the seller (e.ﬁ..
sales at the buyer's residence or at fa-
cilities rented on a temporary or short-
term basis, such as hotel” or motel
roams, conventioy centers, fairgrounds
and restaurants, or sales at the buyar'x
workplace or in dormirory lounges).
The term door-to-door sale does ot in-
clude a transaction:

(1) Made pursuant to prior negotia-
tions in the course of a visir by the
buyer to a retail businesz establish-
ment having a fixed permanent loca.
tion where the geods are exhibited or
the gervices are offered for sate on a
continuing basis; or

* (2) In which the consumer is accorded
the right of resciasion by the provi-
sions of the Consumer Credit Frotec-
ton Act (15 U.S,C, 1635) or regulations
issuwd pursuant thereto; ar

(8) In which the buyer has injtiated
the contact and the Boods or services
are needed to meet a bona fide Imme-
diate persanal emergency of the buyer,
and the buyer furnishes the seller wich
& separate dated and signed personal
statement in the buyer's handwriting
describing the situation requiring im
mediate remedy and expressly ac-
knowledging and waiving the right to
cancel the sale within 3 business days:
ar

{4) Conducted and consummated en-
tirely by mail or telephone: and with-
out any other contact hetwesn the
buyer and the seller or its TEpresenta-
tive prior to delivery of the gooeds or
performance of the services; or

1-23, FTC Act, 18
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PART 3!0—TEL%!\GLAERKETI NG SALES

Sec.

310,1 Scopa of ragulations in this part,

310.2 Definitions.

310.3 Deceptive telemarketing acts ar prac-
Cices,

30,4 Abusjve telamarketing acts or pracs
tices.

310.5 Recordkeeping rBquirements,

310.6 Exemptions,

3107 Actions by states aped privare

3HD,8 Fee for access to the Natlonal
Call Regisery,

persons.
Do Noc

ATTACHMENT B

§3101

310.8  Saverahiiity,
AUTHORITY: 15 1 8.C, €101-6108.
SOURCE: 8 FR 4669, Jan. 29, 2003, unless
otherwige notad,
§510.1 Scops of regnlations in this
part,

This part (mplemants the Tale-
marketing and Consumer Fraud and .
Abusa Prevention Act, 15 U,S.C. 6101
G108. as amended,
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§2102 Definitions.

(8) Acquirer means a business organi-
-zavion, financial institution, of an
agent of a business organization or fi-
nancial institudion that hag authority
from an organization that operates or
licenses a eredit card 8ystem to author-
. ize merchants to accept, transmit, or
PIocess payment by credit capd
through the credit card system for
money, goods or services, or anyching
else of value,

(&) Attorney General means the chief

legal officer of a state,

%c) Billlng information memns any dara
that enables any person to access g
customer's or donor's account, such as
a credit card, checking, savings, share
or similar account, utility bill, morg.
goge loan account, or debif cagg,

(Q) Caller identification servicg-means a
service that allows a telephune sub-
scriber to have the telephone number,
and, where available, name of the call-
ing party transmitted contermnpora-
Neously with the telephone call, and
displayed on a device in or connectad
to the subscriber's telephane,

(e) Cardholder means a parson to
whom a credit card is issued or who is
authorized to use = credit card on be.
half of or In addition to the persorn to
whom the cradit card Is Issued,

() Charitable contriburion mearis any
donarion or gift of money or any other
thing of valye. .

Commission mesns the Federal
Trade Commission,

(h) Crediit menps the dght granted by

a creditor to & debtor to defer payment

of debt or to incur debt and defer its.

pa(ymem:,

1) Cradit card means any card, plate,
coupon book, or other credit device ax.
isting for the purpose of obtaining
money, property, labor, or services on
credjt,

(i) Credit card sales draft means any
record or svidence of a credir card
transaction.

(k) Credit card System means any
method or procedure used to process
credit card transactions involving cred-
it cards fssued or licensed by the opet-
ator of that system,

() Customer means any persan who is
or may be required to pay for goods or
services offered through tele-
rmarketing.

16 CFR Ch, I (1~1=05 Edition)

(m) Donoer means ANy person salicited
to make a charitable contribution.

(n) Established business relatiotship
means a relationship between a seller
and a consumer based on:

(1) the consumer’'s purchase, rental,
ar lease of the seller's goods or servicas
or a financial transaction between the
consumer and seller, within the eight-
een (18) months immediately preceding
the date of a telemarketing call; ar

(2) the consumer's inquiry or applica-
tion regarding a product or service of-
fered by the saller, within the threa ®)
months  imrediately preceding the
date of a telemarketing call,

(©) Fresro.pay conversion means, in
an offer or agresment to sall gr provide
any goods or services, a provision
under- which a customer receives g
product or service for free far an initia}
perled and will Incur ap obligation to
pay for the product or service if he or
she does not take affirmative action to
cancel befora the end of that period,

(p) Investment opportunity means any-
thing, tangible or intangible, that is of.
Terad, offered for sale, sold, or traded
based wholly or in part on representa-
tions, either express or implted, about
past, present, or future income, profic,
or appreciation, .

(@) Material means likely to affect a
person’s choice of, or conduct regard-
ing, goods or zervices or a charitable
contribution,

(r) Merchant means a person who is
authorized undar a written contract
with an acquirer to honor or aceept
credit cards, or to transmit or process
for payment credit card payments, for

e purchase of goods or services or a

charitable contribution,
' (s) Merchant agreement means a wric.
ten contract between a merchant and
an acquirer to honor or acrept eradit
cards, or to transmit or process for
paymant credit card payments, for the
purchase of goods or services or & char-
itable contribution.

(t) Negative optionr feature means, in
an offer or agreement to =al] oy provide
any goods or servites, a provision
under which the eustamer's silence or
failure to take an affirmative action to
Feject goods or services or to cance] the
sgreement 1is incerpreted by the seller
®s acceptance of the offar.

o
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() Ourtbound telephone call means a
telephone call inftiated by a rela-
marketer to induce the purchase of
20048 or services or to salicit a char-
table contribition,

(V) FPersorr means any individual,
group, unincorporated assoclarion, {im-
ited ar general partnership, ¢oipora-
tion, or other business entity,

(w) Preacguired accoun: Information
means any information that enableg a
seller or telemarketer to cause a
charge to be placed against a cus-
tomer's or donor’'s account without ob-
taining the account rumber directly
fram tie customer ar donor during the
telemarketing transaction pursuant to
which the account will he charged.

() Prize means anything offered, or
purportedly offered, and given, or pur-
portedly given, to a person by chance.
For purposes of this definition, chance
exists if a person Is guaranteed to re-
ceive an itern and, at the time of the
offer or purported offer, the tele.
marketer does not identify
item that the person will racejve,

(¥) Prize pramotion means: :

(1} A sweepstakes or otler game of
chance; or

(2) An oral or written exprass or im-
plied representation that a person has
won. bas been selected to reccive, or
may be cligible to recaive a prize or
purported prize,

{z) Seller mmans any person who, in
connection with a telemarketing trans-
action, provides, offers to provide. or
arranges for others to provide goods or
services to the customer in exchange
for consideration.

(aa) State means any state of the
United States, the Distriet of Colurm.
bia, Puerto Rico, the Narchern Mariana
Islands, and any territory or possession
of the Unlited States.

(bb) Telemarketer means any person
who, in connection with telemarketing,
initlares or recelves telephane calls to
or from a custorner or donar.

{cc) Telemarketing means a plan, pro-
gram, or eampaign which ls conducted
to Induce the purchase of goods or sary-
ices or a charitable contribution. by
use of ene or more telephones and
which Involves more than one inter.
State telephone call. The term does net
include the solicitation of salas
through the mailing of 1 catalog

the gpecific -
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which: containe a written description
or {llustration of the goods ar services
offered for sale: includes the business
address of the seller; includes multiple
pages of written material or {)lustra.
tlons; and has been issued not less fra-
quently than once a year, when the
person making the soMcitation dges
not solicit customers by telephone but
only receives calls initiated by cus-
tomers in response to the catalog and
during those calls takes orders only
without further salicitation. For pur-
poses of the previous senrence, the
term ‘further solicitation” does not
include providing the customer with
informatian about, or attempting to
sell, any other itemn tncluded in the
same catalog which prompred the cus-
tomer's call or in & substantially simi-
lar catalag,

{dd) Upselling means soliciting the
purchase of goods or services following
an initial transaction during a single
telephone call. The upsell is a separate
telemarksting transaction, not = con.
tinuation of the initial transaction. An
“external upsell" s a solicitarion
made by or on baehalf of a seller dif-
ferent {rom the sallar in the initial
tratisaction, regardless of whether the
initial transaction and the subsequent
solicitation are made by the sarne tgle-
marketer. An “internal upsell” is a so.
Hettation made by ar on behalf of the
game seller as in the Initial trans-
action, regardless of whether the inj-
tial transaction and subsequent soljei-
tation are made by the same tele-
marketer, :

§510.3 Deceptive telemarleting acts or
practicas.

{a) Prohibited deceptive telamarketing
acts or practices, It is a deceptive tele-
marketing act or practice and 3 vipla-
tion of this Rule for any seller or tele-
marketer to engape In the following
conduct;

(1) Before a customer pays? for Roads
ot servicez offarad, fasling to disclesa

| When a seller or telemarketer uses, or di-
FECTS f CUSLOMETr 10 use, a Courier 4o trans-
part payment, the seller or telemarkoter
must make the disclosures required by
§310.3(a)(ij before sending a courler ro pick
Yp payment or authorization for payrent, or

Contlnued
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truthfully, in a clear and conspleuous
manner, the following material infor-
mation:

() The rotal costs to purchase, re-
ceive. or use, and the guantity of, Aty
gouds or services that are the subject
of the sales offer: 2

(i} Al material restrictions, limita-
vions, or conditions ta purchase, re-
calve, or use the goods or services rhar
are the subject of the zales offer;

(1i1) If the seller has = policy of not
making refunds, cancellations, ex-
changes, or repurchases, a statemant
informing the customer that this is the
seller's policy: or. if the seller or tele-
marketer makes & represantation
about a refund. cancellation, exchanga,
or repurchase policy, a statement of all
material terms and conditions of such
polley;

{iv) In any prize promotion, the odds
of being able to receive the prize, and,
if the odds are nat calculable In ad-
vance, the factors used in eateulating
the odds; that na purchase or payment
1s reguired to win a prize or to particis
pate in a prize promotion and that any
purchase or payment will not incraasa
the person's chances of winning; and
the no-purchase/no-payment method of
participating In the prize promotion
with elther instructions on how to par-
ticipate or an address or local or toll-
free tolaphone number ¢y which eus-
tomers may write or call for Informa-
tion on how to participate:

(v} All material costs or conditions
to receive or redeem a prize that is the
subjeer of the prize premotion;

(vi) In the sale of any goods or serv-
ices represented o protact, insure, ar
otherwise limit a customer's Habllicy
in the event of unauthorized use of thea
eustomer's credit card, the limits on a
cardholder’s liability for unauthorized
use of a credit card pursuanr to 15
U.8.C, 1643: and

{vii) If the offer includes a negative
option feature, all macerial terms and

direcuing a customer to have a courier pick
up payment, or authorization for payment.

tFor. offers of censumsr credlr products
subject to the Truch in Lending Act, 1§
U.S.C. 1601 ot saq., and Regulation Z, 12 CFR
226, compliance with the disclosure require.
ments under the Truth in Lending Act and
Regulation Z shall comatiture complinnes
with §310.3(a) (1) (1) of this Rule,

16 CFR Ch. 1 (1-1-05 Ediition)

conditions of the negative option fea-
ture, including, but not lirnited to, the
fact thar the customer's account will
be charged unless the customer takes
an affirmative action to avold the
charge(s), the date(s) the charge(s) will
be submitted for payment, and the spe-
cific steps the customer must take to
avold the charge(s).

{2) Misrepresenting, directly or by
implication, fn the sale of gaods or
services any of the following material
informarion:

() The total costs to purchase, re-
celve, or use, and the quantity of, any
gouds or services that are the subject
of @ sales offer: ) i ,

(i) Any material resteierion, limita.
tion, or condition to purchase, recesive,
Oor use goads or services that are the
stibjecr of a sales offer:

{ii) Any material aspect of the per-
formance, efficacy, nature, or central

‘characteristicz of goods or services

that are the subject of a sales offer:

{v) Any marcerial aspect of the na-
ture or terms of the seller's refund,
cancellation, exchangs, or repurchase
policies;

{v) Any material aspect of a prize
promotion including, but not. Iimited
to, the odds of being sble to receive a
prize, the nature or value of a Prize, or
that a purchase or payment is required
to win a prize or to participate in a
prize promotion;

(vl) Any material aspect of an invest-
ment opportunity ‘including, but not
limnited to, risk, liquidity, earnings po-
tential, or profitability;

(vi} A saller's or telemarketer's af-
filiation with. or endorsement or spon.
sorship by, any person or government
entity; -

(vilf) That any customer needs of-
fered goods or services ta provide pro-
tections a customer already has pursu.
ant to 18 U.S.C. 1843; or

(ix) Any material aspact of a nega-
tive option feature including, but not
limited to, the fact that the customer's
account will be charged unless the cus-
tomer takes an affirmative action to
avoid the charge(s), the date(s) the
charge(s) will be submitted for pay-
ment, and the specific steps the cus-
tomer must take (o  avoid the
chargs(s),
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(8) Causing billing information to be
submitted for payment, or collecting or
attempring to collect payment for
800ds or services or a charitable con.
tribution, direetly or {ndirectly, with.
out the customer's or donor's exprass
verifishle authorizarion, except when
the method of payment used is a credit
card subject ‘to protections of the
Truth in Lending Act and Regularion
Z,? or a debit card subject to the pra-
tectlons of the Electronie Fund Trans-
fer Act and Regulation E,4 Such au-
thorization shall be deemed verifiabla
if any of the following means is em-
ployed;

{i) Express written authorization by
the customer or donor, which includes
the customer's or donor’s signat:uxje; i

(1) Express oral aurhorization which
{s audio-recorded and made available
upon request to the customer ar donor,
and the customer's or donor's bank or
other billing ontity, and which evi-
dences clearly both the customer's or
donog’s authorization of payment for
the goods or services or charitable con-
triburion that are the subject of the
telemarketing transaction and the cus-
‘tomer's or donor’s recelpt of all of the
follawing information:

{A) The number of debits, charges. or
payments (if rore than one):

(B) The date(s) the
charge(s), or payment(s) will
mitted for paymant;

(C) The amount(s) of the debit(s),
charge(s), or payment(g):

) The customer's or donot's name;

() The customer's or donor's billing
informarion, identified with sufficienc
specificity such that the cusromer or
donor understands what agcount will
be used ro ecollect payment. for the
goods ar services or charitable con.
tribution that are the subject of the
telemarketing transaction;

debit(s),
be sub-

———
3Truth in Lending Act, 15 U.8.C. 1801 er
32, and Regulation Z, 12 CER pary 223,

‘Elecuronic Fund Transfer Act, 15 W.s.C.
1693 er seq,, and Regulation E. 12 CFR part
203,

“For purposes of this Rule, the term “slg-
nature'’ shaltl Include an electronie or digital
form of signature, to the axtent that such
form of signature is recognized as a valid gjg.
nature under applicable federal luw or stare
contract Jaw,

§310.3

(F) A telephione number for customer
donor inquiry that iz answered dur-
ing normal business hours: and

G) The dare of the customer's or do-
nor's oral authorization: or

(1) Written confirmarion of the
transaction, identified in a clsar and
consplcuous manner as such on the
outside of the envelope, sent ta the
customer or donor via first clase mail
prior to the submission for payment of
the customar’s or denor's billing infor-
mation, and that includes all of the in-
formarion contained in
§5310.3(a) (3) (11)(A)-(C) and a claar and
conspicuaus statermnent of the proce-
dures by which the customer or daonoy
can obtain a refund from the seller or
telemarlketer or charitable organiza-
tion in the event the confirmation is
Inaccurate: provided, hawever, that this
means of authorization shall not be
deemned verifiable in instances In which
goods or zervices are offerad in a trans.
action involving a free~to-pay conver-
slon and preacquired account informa-
tion,

(#) Making a false or migleading
Statement to Induce any person to pay
for goods or services or to induce a
charitable contribution,

(b) Assisring and facilitartng. It is a de-
ceptive telemarketing act or practice
and a violation of this Rule for g per-
gon to provide substantial assistance or
SUpport to any seller or telemarketer
when that parson knows or consciously
avolds knowing that the seller or taje.
marketer is engaged in any act or prac-
tica that violates §5310.3(a), {¢) or (d),
or §310.4 of this Rule.

{c) Credir card laundering., Except as
axpressly permitted by the applicable
credit card gsystem, It Is a daceptive
telemarketing act ar practics and =
violation of this Rule for:

(1) A merchant to present to or de.
Posit into, or cause another to present
o or deposit into, the credit card 85~
tem for payment, a credit card salas
draft genarated by & telemarkering
transaction that i5 not the result of g
telemarketing credit card transaction
berween the cardholder and the mer-
chant; :

(%) Any patsan ta emplay, solicit, or
otherwise cause a merchant, or an em-
ployea, representative, or apent of the
merchant, to present to or deposiy into
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the credir card system for payment, a
credit card sales drafr gerarated by a
telemarketing transaction that is not
the result of a telamarketing credit
card transactlon between the carde
holder and the mecchant; or

(3) Any person ro ohtain access to the
¢redit card systern through the use of
business relationship or an affil{ation
with a merchant, when such access iz
not authorized by the merchant agree-
ment or the applicable credit card gyg~
tern,

@) Prohibited deceptive acts or prac-
Hees in the solicitation of charitabls con-
tributions. It is a fraudulent chayitable
salicitation, a deceptive telemarketing
act or practice, and a vialation of thiz
Rule far any telemarketer soliciting
charitable contributions to misrepre-
sent, directly or hy implication, any of
the following material infarmation:

(1) The nature, purpose, or missien of

any entity on behalf of which a chari- .

table contribution ls being requested;

(2) That any charitable contribucion
is tax deductible in whole or in parr;

(3) Tha purposs for which any chari-
table contribution will be used;

{4) The percentage ar ameunt of any
charitable contribution that will go to
@ charicable organization or to any
particular charitable program:

(5) Any material aspect of a prize
promotion including, but not lmited
to: the odds of being able to recelve a
prize; the narure or value of a prize; or
that a charitable contribution is re-

quired to win a prize or to participate -

in a prize promarion; or

(& A charitable organization's or
telemarketer's affiliation with, or en-
dorgement or sponsorship by, any per-
50N or gavernment entiry,

£310.4 Abusive telemarketing acta or
practices.

(a) Abusive conduet geperally. 1t is an
abusive telernarketing act or practice
and a vislation of this Rule Tor any
saller or zelemarketer to engage in the
following conduct:

(1) Threats, Intimidation, or the usa
of profane or obscene language;

(2) Requesting or recaiving payment
of any fee or consideration for zoods oy
services represented to rernove deropa-
tory information from, or improve, a

16 CFR Ch. | (1-1-05 Ediifion)

person's credit history, credit record,
or eredit racing until:

(1) The time frame in which the seller
has represented all of the goods or
services will be provided to that persen
has expired; and

(1) The seller has provided the parson
with documentation in the form of a
consurner repart from a consumer re-
porting agency demonstrating that the
promised results have been achieved,
such report having been issuad more
than six manths after the resuits wara
achjeved. Nothing In this Rule should
be construed to affect the requirement
in the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 1§
U.S.C. 1681, that a consumer report

-may only be obtained for a specified

permissible purpose:

() Requesting or receiving payment
of any fee or consideration from a per-
$0n for goods or services represented to
recover or otherwise assist in the re-
turn of money or any other item of
value paid for by, ar promised to, thar
person in a previous telemarketing
transaction. until seven (7) businessg
dayz after such money or other iten is
delivered to that parson. This provision
shall not apply to goods or services
provided to a person by a licensed at-
torney;

(4) Requesting or recetving payment
of any fee or consideration in advance
of obtaining a loan or other extension
of credit when the seller or tole-
marketer has guaranteed or rep-
rasented a high likelihoad of sucress In
obtalning or arranging a 1an or othar
extension of eredit for & person:

(5) Disclosing or receiving. for cone
sideration, unenerypted consumer ac-
count rumbers for use in tele-
rmarketing; provided, however, that this
paragraph shall not apply to the disclo-
sure or receipt of a customer's or do-
nor's billing Informarion to process a
payment for pgoods or services or s
charitabla contribution pursuant to a
transaction;

(6) Causing bijlling information ta be
submitted for payment, directly or in-
directly. without the express informed
consent of the customer or donor. In
any telemarketing transaction, the
seller or telemarketer must obtain the
express informed consent of the cus-
tomer or donot to be charged for the
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goods or services or charitable con.
tribution and to be charged using the
identifled account, In any tele-
markeating trangaction involving
preacquired account information, the
requirements in paragraphs (a)(6) (1)
through () of this section must be met
o evidence express informed consent,

(1) In any velernarketing transaction
Involving preacquirad account informa-
tlon and m free-to-pay conversion fea.
ture. the saller or telemarketer must:

(A) obrain from the customer, At a
minimum. the last four (4) digits of the
account number to be charged:;

(B) obtain from thae customer his or
her express agreement to be charged
for the goods or services and to he
charged using the account number pur-
suant to paragraph {a)(B)(1)(A) of this
section; and,

(C) make and maintain an audio re-
cording of the entire telemarketing
transacrion. :

{ii) In any other telemarketing trans-
action involving preacquired account
information not described in paragraph
(a)(6)(1) of this section, the seller or
telemarketer must: .

(A) at a minimum, identify the ac-
count o bz charged wirh sufficient
specificlty for the customer or donor te
understand  what account  will be
charged; and

{B) obtain from the .customer or
donor his or her express agreement o
be charged for the goods or services
and to be charged using the account
number identified pursuane to para-
graph (a) (6}(1i)(A) of this section: or

7) Failing to transmit or cause to be
transmitted the telephone number,
and, when made available by tha teie-
markerer's carrier,
relemarkerer, to any caller identifjca-
tion service in use by a recipient of a
telemnarkating call; provided that fr
shall not be a violacion to substituta
{for the name and phone number used
in, or billed for, making the cail) the
name of the seller or charitable organi-
2dtion an behalf of which a tele-
marketing call is placed, and the sell-
er's or charitable organization's cus-
tomer or donor service telephone num-
ber. which iz answered during regular
business hours,

(&) Pattern of calls. (1Y It {s an abusive
telemarketing act or practice and g

the name of the
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violation of thia Rule for a tele.
marketer to engage in, ar for a seiler
to cdausze a telemarketer to engage in,
the following conduce:

(1) Causing any telephane to ring, or
engaging any person in telephone con-
versation, repeatedly ar continuously
with Intent to annoy, abuse, or harass
any pergon at the called number: -

(‘i,i) Denying or interfering in any
way, directly or indirectly, with a per-
son's right ta be placed on any registry
of nammes and/or telephone numbers of
persons who do not wish o receive out-
bound telephone calls established ro
coxnply with §310.4(b) (2} (111):

(iif) Initiating any outbound tele.
phone call to a persan when;

(A} that person previcusly has stated
that he or she does not wish tu recefve
an outbound telephone call made by or
on behalf of the seller whase goods or
services are betng offered or made on
behalf of the charitable organization
for which a charitable coneribution is
baing salicited; or

(B) that person's telephone number is
on the ‘do-not-call" regist main.
tained by the Commission, o persons
who do not wish to receive autbound
telephone calls to induce the purchase
of goods or services unless the seller

(/} has obtained the express sgree-
MENL, in writtng, of such person to
Place calls to that person. Such wrltten
agreement shall clearly evidence such
person’s authorizarion that calls made
by or on behalf of a specific party may
ba placed to that person, and shall {6
clude the telephobe number te which
the calls may be placed and the sigiis-
ture?t of that person: or

(/) has an established business rela-
tionship with such person, and that
person has not stated that he or she
does not wish to receive outbound tele-
phone calls under paragraph
(B) (1) (1i1)(A) of this section: or

(iv) Abandoning any eutbound tele-
phone call. An outbound telephone call
Is “abandoned" under this section if a
person answers it and the telemarketer

FFor purposes of this Rule, the tarm “sig-
nature” shall include an electronic or digital
form of signature, to the extent that such
form of signature {3 recognized a5 a val id sig-
niature undes applleable federa) law or state
contract lyw,
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does not connect the eall to 5 sales rep.
fesentative within two (2) seconds of
the person’s completed greeting,

{2) It 15 an abusive telemarketing act
or practice and a violation of this Rule
for any person to sell, rent, lease, pur-
chase, or use any list established to
comply with §210,4(b) WA), or
maintained by rhe Commission pursy-
ant ta §310.4(b)(1) (111)(B), for any pur-
pose except compliance with the provi-
slang of this Rule or atheswige to pre-
vent telaphone calls tg telephone num-
bers on such lists. :

(3) A seller or telemarketer will not
be lable for violating §310.4(b) (1) (1)
and (1ij) if it can demonstrate that, as
part of the seller's or telemarkater's
routtne business practice: '

() It has established and imple-
mented writtan procedures 1o comply
wich §310.4(b) (1) (i1} and {Eid):

(11} It has trained its personne}, and
any entity assisting in its compliance,
in the procedures escabtished pursuant
o §310.4(b) (3) (1):

(1if) The seller, or a telernarketer or
anether person acting on behalf of the
seller or churitahble organization, has
maintained and recorded a list of tale.
phone nuwnbers the seller or charitabie
organization may not contact, in com.
pliance with §310,4(b) (1) {Hy(A);

(iv) The seller or a telemarketar uses
a process to prevent telemarketing to
any telephone number on any list es.
tablished pursuant to §310.4 ) (3) (i11) or
310.4(b) (D) i (B), employing a version
of the "do-not.call” registiy ohtained
fram the Commission na more than
thirty-one (31) days prior ta the date
any call i3 made, and maintaing
records documenting this procass;

(V) The seller ot a talemarkeater or
another person acting on behalf of the
seller or charitable organjzation, mon-
itors and enforces compliance with the
procedures established pursuant re
§310.4(b)(3)(i); and

(V1) Any subsequent call otherwise
Violating §310.4(B) (1) (1) or (iif) ie the
result of error,

() A seller or telemarketer will not
‘be liable far vialating 210,4(b) (1) iy} 1

(i) the saller or telemarketer employs
technology that ensures abandonrnent,
of no more than three {3) percent of all
calls answered by a persen, measured
per day per calling campaign;
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(i) the scller op telemarkeytar, for
each telemarketing eal Placed, allows
the relephone to ring for at least fif-
teen (15) seennds or four (4) rings befors
disconnacting an unanswered call;

(11}) whenever a salss representative
is not available to speak with the per-
son snswering the call within two (2)
seconds aftar the perzon's complated
Breeting, the seller or telemarkater
promptly plays a recordad message
that staves the name and re]eghtme
number of the seller on whose hehalf

e call was placed”; and

(v} the seller.or telemarketer, in ac-
cordancs with §310.5(b)-(d), retains
records establishing eompliance with
§310.4(b) (4) (0)-(itl).

(€) Calling time restrictions. Without

& prior consent of a parson, v is an
abusive talemarketing act or practice
and a violation of rhis Rule for tele.
marketer to engage in outbound tela.
phone calls to a persan's residence at
any time other than between 8:00 a.m.
and 8:00 p.m, local time at the called
persan's location, -

(d) Required oral disclosurss jn the sale
of goods or serviges, It 1% an abusive tele.
markering act or practice and a viola.
tion of this Rule for u telemarkezer in
an outbatingd telephone call or internal
or external upsell to induce the pur-
chase of goods or services to fail co dis-
close truthfully, promptly, and in a
clear and conspicuous manner to the
person receiving the eall, the following
information:

(1) The identity of the seller;

{2) That the purpase of the call is to
sell goods or services;

(3 The nature of the RBeods or serv.
ices; and

(1) That no purchase or payment 1s
necessary to be ahle to win a prize or
participate in a prize prornotion (f »
Prize promation is affered and that any
purchase or payment will not increass
the person's chances of winning, This
diselosure rmust be made befors or in
conjuncrion with the description of the
prize to the person called. If racquestad
by that person, the telemarketer muse
disclose  the no-purchage/no-payment

e .. .

"This provision does not affect any saller's
or telemarketer's obligation to comply with
relevant state and federal laws, inciuding
but not limited 1o the TCPA, 47 U.S.C. 227,
and 47 CFR part 54.1200,
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entry method for the prize promotion:
provided, however, that, in any internal
upsell for the sale of goods or services,
the seller or telemarketer must pro.
vide the disclosures listed in this sec-
tion anly to the extent that the infor-
mation in the upsell differs from the
disclosures provided in the inirial tele.
marketing transaction.

(&) Required ora) disclosures i chars-
table sollcitations, It is an abusive tele-
marKeting act or practice and a viola-
tion of this Rule for a telemarketer, in
an outbound talephone call to induce a
charitable contribution, to fail to dis-
close truthfully, promptly, and in 3
clear and conspicuous manner to the
person recelving the call, the following
information:

(1) The identity of the charitable or-
Banization on behalf of which the re-
Quest is being miade: and

(3) That the purposa of the call is to
solicit a char{table contribution.

{88 FR 4689, Jan. 28, 2003, as amended at §9
FR 16373, Mar. 29, 2004]

$810.5 Recordkeeping requirements,

(a) Any seller or telemarketer shall
keep, for a period of 24 months from
the date the record is produced, the fol-
lowing records relating to {ts taele-
marketing acrivities:

() All substanrially different adver-
tising, Lrochures, telemarketing
scripte, and prometional materials:

(2) The name and last known addresy
of each prize recipient and the prize
awarded for prizes that are rep-
resented, directly or by implicarion, to
have a valie of $25.00 or more:

(3} The name and last known address
of each customer, the gonds or services
purchased, the date such goods or sarv-
lces were shipped or provided, and the
amount paid by the customer for the
goods or services; 4

() The name, any fictitious name
used, the last known home address and
telephone number, and the Job title(s)
for all current and formsr employees

3For offers of constiner credit products
subject to the Truth in Lending Act. 15
U.S.C. 1601 er seq.,, and Regulation Z, 12 CFR
228, compliance with the vecondkeeping ve.
quirements under rhe Truch in Lending Act,
and Regulation Z, shall constipute eompli.
ance with §310.5(2)(3) of this Rule,

§310.6

directly {nvolvad in telaphone sales or

sollcitations: provided, however, that if
the zeller or telemarketer permits fic-
titious names to be used by employees.
each flctitious name must be tracasble
to only one spacific employee; and

{5) All verifiable autharizations or
records of express informed consent or
axpress agreement required to be pPro-
vided or received under this Rule.

(b} A seller or telemarketer may
keep the records required by §210.5(a)
in any form, and in the same marner,
format, or place as they keep such
recards in the erdinary course of busi-
ness. Failure to keep all records re-
quired by §310.5() shall be a violation
of this Rula,

{(c) The seller and the telemarketer
calling on behaif of the seller may, by
written agreement, allocate responsi-
bility between themselves far the rec.
ordkeaping required by this Sectiop,
When a seiler and telemarketer have
entered into such an agreement, the
terms of thav agreement shall guvern,
and the seiler or telemarketer, as the
case may be, need not koep records
that duplicate those of the other, If the
agreement is unclear as to who must
maintain any reguired record(s), or if
no such agreement exists, the seller
shall be responsible for complying with
S§210.5(=}(1)-(3) and (A); the  tale-
marketer shall be responsible for com-
Plying with §310.5(a)(4).

{d) In the event of any dissolution or
termination of tha seller's or tale.
marketer's business, the principal of
that saller or telemarketer shall main-
tain all records as required under this
Section. In the svent of any sale, as-
signment, or other change in ownership
of the seller's or telemarketer's busi.
ness, the successor business shall main-
taln all records required under this
Section,

§310.6 Exempfions,

(2) Solicitations to induce charivable
contributions via outbound telephaone
calls are not covered by
5310.4(b) (1) (111} (B) of this Rula.

(b) The following acts or practices
are exempt from this Rule:

{1) The saie of pay-per-call services
subject to the Commission's Rule enti.
tled "Trade Regularion Rule Pursuant
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to the Telephone Disclosure and Dis.
pute Resolution Act of 1992, 16 CFR
Part 308, provided, however, that this
exemption does not apply to the re-
quirements. of §§3{0.4(a){1), (a}(7), (b,
and {c);

(%) The sale of franchises sugject t0
the Commission's Rule entitled ‘‘Dis.
closure Requirements and Prohihitions
Concerning Franchising and Business
Opportunity = Ventures," (*Franchise
Rule') 18 CFR Part 438, provided, how-
ever, that this exemption does not
apply  to  the requirements of
§5310.4(a) (1), (@)(N), (b), and (e);

{3) Telephone calls in which the aale
of goods or services or charitable solic-
ication Is not completed, and payment
or authorization of payment is not re-
quired, until after z faceto-face szlas
or donation presentation by the seller
or charitable organization, provided,
hawever, that this exemption doas not
apply to the requirements of
5§310.4(2)(1), (a)(N. (b). and {c):

Telephone calls initiated by a cus:
tomer or donor that are not the result
of any solicitation by a seller, chari-
" table organization, or telemarkerer,
provided, however, that this exemption
does not apply to sny instances of
upselling included in such telephone
calls:

(5) Telephone calls initiated by a cus-
tomer or donor in response to an adver-
tisement through any medium, other
than direct mall solicitation, Pprovided,
however, that this exemgtion does not
apply to calls initiated by a customer
or donor in respanse to an advertise-
ment relating to investment Opportuni-
ties, business oppurtunities other than
business arrangements covered by the
Franchise Rule, or advertisements in-
volving goods or services described in
§§310.3(a) (1) (vi) or 310.4(2)(2)-14): or to
any instances of upselling included in
sucht telephone calls:

(6) Telephone calls inftlated by a cus-
tomer ot donor In response to a direct
mall solicitation, including sclicita-
tiong via the U.8, Postal Service, face
simile transmission, electronlc mail,
and other similar methods of delivery
in which a solicitavion is directed to
specific address(es) or perzon(s), that
clearly, canspicuously, and truthfully
discloses all marterial information 1ise.
ed in §310.3(2){2) of this Rule, for any
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goods or services offered in the dicect
mail solicitation, and that contains no
material misrepresentation regarding
any item contained in §310.3(d) of this
Rule for any requested charitable con-
triburior: provided, however, that this
exemption does not apply to calls initi.
ated g_y a customer {n response to a di-
rect mall solicitation relaring to prize
promotions, investment opportunities,
business oppertunities other than busi-
niess  arrangements covered by the
Franchise Rule, or goods oy services de-
scribed in §§310.3(@}(1)(vi) or 310.4(a)(2)-
(9); or to any instances of u&selling in-
cluded in such telephone calls; and

(1) Telephone calls between 3 tele-
marketer and any business, except
calls to induce the retail sale of non.
durable office or cleaning supplies; pru-
vided, however, thar §310.4(b) (1) (2ii) (B)
and §310,5 of this Rule shall ant apply
to sellers or telemarketers of non-
durable office or cleaning supplies.

§810.7 Actiona by states and private
persons.

(8) Any attorney general or other of-
Ficer of a state autharized by the state
to bring an action under the Tele-
marketing and Consumer Fraud and
Abuse Prevention Act, and any privare
person who bringg an action under that
Aet, shall serve written notice of irs
action an the Coramission, if faasjble,
prigr to its initlating an action under
thiz Rule. The notice shall be senr to
the Office of the Dirsetor, Bureau of
Consumer Protection, Fedsral Trade
Commisston, Washington, D.C. 20580,
and shall include a copy of the stars's
or private Serson's complaint and any
other pleadings to be filad with the
court. If prior notice iz not feasible,
the state or privats person shall serve
the Commission with the required no-
tice immediarely upon instituting its
action.

{6} Nothing contained in this Section
shall prohibit any attorney general or
other authorized state official from
praceeding in state court on the basis
of an alleged violation of any civil or
criminal statute of such state,

§3810.8 Foa for access to the National
De Not Call Bagistay.

(a) It is a violation of this Rule for
any seller to initiate, or cause any
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telemarketer to initlate, an suthound
telephone call vo any person whose
telephonie number iz within a given
area coda unless such seller, eithey di-
rectly or through another person, first
has paid the apnual fee, required by
§310.8(c), for acress to telephone num-
bers within that area code that are in-
cluded in rhe National Do Not Call
Registry maintained by the Commis.
sion under §310.4(b)(1) (i) (B): provided,
however, that such payment is not nec-
essary if the seller initiages, or eauses
a telemarketer to initiate, calls solely
to persons pursuant to
§8310.4M) (DELEY(BY(A or (M), and the
seller doms not access the Nariong) Do
Not Call Registry for any other pur-
pose.

(&) 1t is a violatiog of rhis Rule for
anty telemarketer, on behalf of any sell-
er, to initiate an outbound telephone
call to any person whose telephone
number 18 within a given area code un-
less that seller, either directly or
through another person, first has paid
the annual fee, required by §310.§(c).
for access to the telephone numbers
within Lt area code that are included
in the National Do Not Call Registry:
provided, however, that such payment
is not necessary if the seller initiates,
or causes = Wlemnarketer to initiate,
calls solely to persons pursuant to
5§04} WNEBY(D or (i), and the
seller doas not access the National Do
Not Call Registry for any other pur.

0se.

P (c) The anmual fee, which must be
paid by any person prior to obtaining
access to the National Do Not Call
Registry, is $40 per area code of data
accessed, up to a maximum of §11.000:
provided, however, that there shsll be
no charpe for the first flve area codes
of data accessed by any person, and
provided further, that thera shall be no
charge to any person engaging in or
causing others to engage In outbound
telephone calls to consumers and who
is accessing the National Do Not Call
Ragistry without being required under
this Rule, 47 CFR &4,1200, or any other
faderal law. Any parson accessing the
National Do Net Call Registry may not
participate in any arrangement rto
share the cost of accessing the reg-
istry, including any arrangement wi

any telemarketer or service provider to

§310.8

divide the casts te mccess the registry
among various clients of that tele-
marketer or service provider,

(d) After a person, either directly or
through another person, pays the fees
set forth in §310.8(c), the person will be
provided a wunique acesunt number
which will allow that person to access
the registry data for the selected area
codes at any time for twelve months
following the first dagl of the month in
which the person paid the fee (""the an-
nual period"). To obtain access to addi-
tional area codes of data during the
first gix months of the annual pericd,
the persen must first pay $40 for sach
additional area code of data not Ini-
tially selacted. To obtain access to ad-
ditional area codes of data during the
second six months of the annual period,

e person must first pay $20 for each
additional area code of data not ini-
tlally selected. The payment of the ad-
ditional fee will permic the person to
access the additional aren codes of data
for the remainder of the annual period.

(e) Access to the Narional Do Not
Call Registry (s limited to tele-
marketers, sellers, others engaged in or
causing others to angage in telephone
calls to comsumers, service providers
acting on behalf of such persons, and
any government agency that has law
enforcement authority. Prior to access-
Ing the National Do Not Call Registry,
a person must provide the identliying
information required by the operator of

the registry to collect the.fee, and
must certify, under penalty of law,
that the persen iz accessing the reg-

istry solely to camply with the provi-
sions of this Rule or to otherwise pre-
vent telephone calls to telephone num-
bers on the registry. If the person is ac-
cessing the registry on behalf of sell-
ers, that person also must identify
each of the sellers on whase behalf it {s
accussing the registry, must pravide
each seller's unique account #fumber
for access to the natlonal registry, and
must certify, under penglty of law,
that the sellers will be using the infur-
mation pgathered from tha registry
solely to comply with the provisions of
this Rule or otherwise to pravent tele-
phane calls to telephone numbers on
the registry.

(68 R 45144, July 31, 2003, as amended at 69
FR 45585, July 30, 2004)
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